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  Blue Ribbon Commission for Health Care Reform

DRAFT
May 18, 2007 Commission Meeting Notes
Commissioners Present
Erik Ammidown

Elisabeth Arenales

Carrie A. Besnette
Christy Blakely 
Peg Burnette
David A. Downs, Jr. MD

Steve ErkenBrack
Julia Greene
Linda Gorman

R. Allan Jensen

Grant Jones 
Don Kortz

Bill Lindsay

Donna Marshall

Pam Nicholson
David F. Rivera
Mark Simon 
Daniel Stenersen
Steven J. Summer

Joan M. Weber

Mark Wallace

Lynn Westberg

Barbara Yondorf

Commissioners Absent
Clarke D. Becker 
Lisa M. Esgar
Ralph Pollock 
Arnold Salazar

The Lewin Group
Team members: John Sheils, Evelyn Murphy, Mark Zezza

(PPT slides attached)

Highlights of presentation:
· Extensive work on front end with proposers, in order to fully define specifics of each approach.
· Initial modeling inevitably finds some unexpected results, leading to need for additional refinements in plans and approaches.
· Actuarial models give you per-person costs but don’t tell you how many people will be affected – need different analysis for that.
· Will use Colorado-specific data.
· Input state-specific data into Health Benefits Simulation Model to estimate coverage, costs and stakeholder impacts – allows sensitivity analysis and testing of different assumptions.
· Lewin is being sold to Ingenix, a unit of United Healthcare. They have firewalls in place to prevent conflicts.
Q&A

· Do you get data directly from insurers and employers?

· Comes from Division of Insurance for fully-insured market; for self-insured, use estimates.
· What happens to safety net if more people get insurance? Does the model illustrate those impacts on providers?

· Note that even with expansions of Medicaid and private insurance, you’ll still have uninsured people. Model estimates both new money coming to safety net providers as well as remaining number of uninsured.
· How – if at all – do you model qualitative impacts (e.g., quality, impact/use of expanded information technology, etc.)?
· People have tried to model quality, but subjectivity and differing definitions make it virtually impossible to get meaningful results. Can demonstrate some savings from technology, but still fairly theoretical. Also hard to measure downstream access effects in rural areas.

· Can you measure prevention/wellness?

· Have data on program costs from more reliance on primary care/medical home model – demonstrate savings.

· If a proposal includes a “new” idea, e.g., 24/7 nurse line, that hasn’t exactly been done before, how do you model it?

· First do literature survey, look for similar approaches elsewhere; even if not exactly the same, can extrapolate from that.

· Concern re: quality answer – there are ways to calculate that. If you’re modeling medical home, there’s a significant quality impact there. 
· Impact of undocumented workers – how do you account for people like that who are uninsurable under any circumstances?

· Estimate numbers of citizens, documented and undocumented people, input those figures in the model.

· Some proposals submitted to Commission don‘t specify benefits package. Do you help them develop that in order to model?

· Many proposers do need help, and Lewin will do that to extent possible.

· Use of non-government data sources, e.g., from regional business organizations?

· Challenge is to ensure consistency throughout state. 

· What if you have proposal that covers everything but caps cost to individual at unrealistic level? 

· Calculate amount that will be collected, that demonstrates gap. Then work with proposer to change/challenge. 

· How address legal issues (e.g., ERISA, EMTALA, anti-trust) in proposals?

· Take laws into account, flag concerns if they see them. However, the laws are silent on some ideas, and you don’t know if they’ll pass muster until tested in court.

· How do you model human reactions, e.g. provider reaction to low payment rates or employer reaction to mandates?

· Don’t have migration models for providers or employers. Identify that as limitation of models.

· Lewin has modeled lots of single-payer proposals. Common denominators/lessons learned that can inform the proposals we see?

· Results are always controversial. Rare that they get result that shows people being worse off.  Debate about how large administrative savings are, and downstream impact on consumers – whether or not those savings are passed on.
· Ingenix/Lewin firewall protections. Specifics? Must be impermeable.

· Only people who have any contact with work are project team, not even superiors within Lewin. No Ingenix or United staff will review or have input in advance. Also, Lewin is a tiny cog within United – don’t see “Big Brother” potential. 
· Not just fact, but appearance of conflict. If there is ever any concern, let us know.

· Lewin has contractual obligation to submit work that is on the level. “Do or die” project – if can’t do this right, Lewin’s own reputation is on the line.
· Suggestions about how to make our process easier and what we can do to make the output better?

· Working closely with proposers to get really good specifications are the key. Team members will also identify concerns based on their previous experience. Also, commissioners can identify “wish list” – what ideas, issues do you most want to examine? If one of the proposals includes those elements but isn’t well-specified, Lewin will work with proposers to refine.

· Whatever comes out of our process will go to the General Assembly, with the possibility it will be modified there. Is there anything we can do to minimize those modifications?

· Many times you have to re-model. If Commission develops plan of its own, can do sensitivity testing to illustrate effects of changes; it can help to have that information ahead of time.

· What definition of “medical home” have you used to demonstrate cost savings?

· Can model different approaches; you see different impacts depending on the approach. There’s not a lot of evidence yet, so have to make some assumptions. Have modeled case management approach. Have some cost-savings evidence from electronic medical record, not real quality info.

· Will model tell us the odds of success of discrete pieces within the plans, e.g., if a plan relies heavily on primary care physicians but we have a serious shortage? 

· Take those into account from beginning.

· Quality of modeling depends on whether you’re evaluating something that’s been tried before or something new. How confident can we be of your findings when looking at something that hasn’t been tried before?

· Include “caveats” discussion about uncertain elements. Do sensitivity analyses to try to minimize uncertainty, or use analogies. But discussions of “confidence” can bias the assessment.
Commission Business
Minutes
· Pam Nicholson was at March 28 meeting

· GET CORRECTIONS FROM LINDA ON P. 2 OF 4/27 NOTES

· May 7: “lack of inclusion” of long-term care (p. 5)

· May 17: NOTES FROM DONNA

Meetings
· June 1 Proposals Committee meeting will not take place at Colorado Foundation for Families and Children, new location will be announced; time is changed to 10-12:30.

Task Forces
Communications and Outreach Committee asks all commissioners, observers, legislators, Governor’s office, etc. to nominate people for the Employer, Provider, Rural and Underserved Populations Task Forces. Information and nomination form available on the Commission’s Web site, www.colorado.gov/208commission. People may self-nominate; if you nominate someone else, we suggest that you consult with that individual prior to submitting the nomination.
Nominations are due June 5. Committee will meet at 8:30 June 7 at Metro State College to review nominations and select Task Force members.
Nominations will be public, as will deliberations at selection meeting.

Commission voted unanimously to move forward as outlined above.
Health Reform Proposals: Selection
Process
· Commission’s Goal, Principles and Criteria posted on wall; commissioners asked to frame their decisions within those parameters.

· Modeling will reflect a range of options, in part to inform the development of a consolidated proposal.
· Commissioners asked to consider not simply their personal preferences, but the information and approaches that best meet the Commission’s criteria.
· Try to combine the best proposals with a range of approaches.

· Commissioners reminded their colleagues to consider the concerns and priorities heard at public meetings.

· Legislative mandate is to “give special attention to” uninsured, under-insured and those at risk of financial hardship and find cost savings
· Which of the proposals under consideration best achieve the legislative mandate?
· Then look at how they mesh with our criteria

· Discussion about cost savings is speculative until the modeling is completed

· Considerable discussion about long-term care. Key to cost savings, but Commission didn’t ask proposers to address it specifically.

· Report to General Assembly is opportunity to spotlight this and other important issues that may not be fully addressed in proposals. Also, consolidated proposal also provides opportunity for us to develop more fleshed-out approach to such issues.
When asked to indicate preferences – not a range – initial clustering around Groups C, D, E, F.

Started by identifying proposal with most support; then looked at what elements were missing and identified proposals that incorporated those.
Discussion: Balance taking careful look at different options with what seems to best meet the Commission’s criteria. Range is important, but which approaches are most effective and potentially implementable?

Commissioners did a “straw poll” in order to see if any one plan rose to the top – the thinking being that they could then have a starting point for deliberations and view the other plans in relation to what was included/left out of that that proposal. Commissioners were asked to identify their top four plans among the 11; however, not all commissioners were prepared to do that.  Proposal 12 received the most support, with 19 out of 23 commissioners indicating that it would be among their top choices for modeling. Then the discussion moved to specifics of each of the proposals.

Cases for Modeling
NOTE: The points made below reflect elements that commissioners said would be useful to model, in order to understand impacts. Inclusion on this list does not necessarily mean that commissioners like these elements. Again, they strove to identify a breadth of approaches to model.
Proposal 12, “A Plan for Covering Coloradans” – 

Case for modeling:
Comprehensive, lots of detail

Regulated markets – that’s a component that should be examined



Range of benefits but standardized




Guaranteed issue




Community rating




Employer mandate

Individual mandate with employer pay-or-play




Chronically healthy and young subsidize chronically unwell and elderly




Of all proposals, takes closest look at reducing waste through care 

   coordination and quality measures




Wellness and prevention




Medical home




Choice

Broad-based group created it, significant non-Denver participation
Medically needy program

#5, Solutions for a Healthy Colorado
Case for modeling:
Builds on current system – individual mandate but needn’t be individual 
   plan




Interesting things to model:




Limited benefit




Reinsurance




1%/1% 




Limited provider reimbursement




Nutritional tax




Guaranteed issue, modified community rating




Core benefit package




Raises Medicaid reimbursement




Would not create same market disruptions as others

#6, A Phased Approach to Achieving Universal Healthcare in Colorado
Case for modeling:
Limited benefit




Easiest to build on if you’re going to model individual product

#9, An Individual-Based health insurance System 
Case for modeling:
Eliminates group insurance market – requires individual coverage




Innovative benefit design

#2, Better Health Care for Colorado
Case for modeling:
Thoughtful approach to long-term care




Builds on employer-based system




Exchange




Phase-in




Choice




Pay-for-performance




Wellness and prevention



Implementable




No mandates

#21, FAIR Health Care 
Case for modeling:
Eliminates mandates




Eliminates guaranteed issue




Value to modeling very different approach like this – put substance 
   behind the debate
#16, Colorado Health Services Program
Case for modeling:
Large constituency that wants to look at single-payer




Addresses some major cost-drivers




Streamlining, simplicity




Massive restructuring of system




Not sure of sustainability – only way to know is to model

#11, Community of Caring
Case for modeling:
Interesting concept – blends different funding sources, directs them to 

   offset what individual pays



Large purchasing pool with all public and private dollars



Creates evolved paradigm of wellness




Stabilizes safety net




Moves in direction of single-payer without going all the way




Employer mandate




Heavy consumer orientation




Dental and mental linked




Education/prevention




TABOR-exempt health partnership




Meets all of Commission’s criteria

#10, Healthy Colorado Now

Case for modeling:
Employer mandate




Builds on current system – creates Pro-CO but keeps insurance market in 

   Place

Pro-CO concept

Forward planning

Easier to model than #7

#7, Connecting Care and Health for Colorado

Case for modeling:
Greatest level of consumer involvement in its creation




Well fleshed-out




Pathway for people to get out of public benefit system




Best treatment of un- and under-insured




Employer mandate




Merges small-group and individual markets




Medically needy program




Provider payment increases




TEFRA option




Reinsurance




Young adult coverage up to age 26




Rural voice




Streamlining HCBS

Considerable discussion ensued about what proposals should be included on the final list. Commissioners returned to the importance of modeling a range of approaches, while ensuring that the proposals chosen included sufficient detail and scope to allow effective modeling. 
Many commissioners noted that, while they would like to model the FAIR proposal, they did not believe it provided enough information to be modeled. 
Within the range of approaches remaining on the table, and recognizing the Proposal # 12 – already on the list for modeling – included a mandate for employers to offer insurance, commissioners agreed that they wanted to model proposals with different approaches – i.e., one with an individual mandate and one with neither employer nor individual mandates. 
They also discussed the fact that, while only one proposal on the list of 11 was a single-payer approach, many of the 31 proposals originally submitted to the Commission took that approach. Accordingly, most commissioners felt it was important to include the single-payer proposal for modeling.

The following slate of proposals was put forward for a vote:

#2, “Better Health Care for Colorado”
#5, “Solutions for a Healthy Colorado”
#12, “A Plan for Covering Coloradans”
#16, “Colorado Health Services Program”
Results of the vote: 15 for, 7 against. Based on their previous agreement that a supermajority would be needed to select the short list of plans to be modeled, the Commission agreed to submit this slate to Lewin for evaluation.
Commissioners concluded by recognizing the tremendous amount of work that went into all the proposals that were submitted, and applauded the proposers for their time, effort and dedication to addressing an important problem.
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